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NWGRC
NORTHWEST GEORGIA REGIONAL COMMISSION

A Region WithA BrightFuture

Rome Office: P.O. Box 1798, Rome, Georgia 30162-1798 Phone (706) 295-6485 www.nwgrc.org
RC Fax (706) 295-6665 AAA Fax (706) 802-5508 WIA Fax (706) 802-5567

Dalton Office: 503 West Waugh Street, Dalton, Georgia 30720 Phone (706) 272-2300 Fax (706) 272-2253

December 12,2014

Members of the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are pleased to present the comprehensive annual financial report of the Northwest
Georgia Regional Commission (Commission) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.
The report is issuedpursuant to Georgia law requiring all Regional Commissions to
publisha complete set of financial statements within six months of the close of the fiscal
year. The report must conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and
be audited inaccordance with auditing standards generally accepted inthe UnitedStates
of America by a firm of licensedcertifiedpublic accountants........The Commission's management is responsible for the contents of this report and it
consists ofmanagement's representations concerning the finances of the Commission.
Consequently, management assumes responsibility for the completeness and reliability of
all the informationpresented. To provide a reasonable basis for makingthese
representations, the Commission's management has established a comprehensive internal
control system. It is designed to protect the Commission's assets from loss or misuse, and
to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the Commission's
financial statements inconformity with GAAP. The Commissionrecognizes that the cost
of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits. The controls are designed to
provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be
free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable inall material
respects.

RLJennings & Associates, PC, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has
audited the Commission's financial statements. The goal of the independent audit is to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the Commission for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accountingprinciples used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall presentation. The

Regional Planning Economic Development Area Agency on Aging Workforce Investment Program
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independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there is a reasonable basis for
rendering an unqualified opinion that the Commission's financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2014, are fairly presented inconformity with GAAP. The independent
auditor's report is the first component of the financial section that follows this
introductory section.

The independent audit of the Commission's financial statements is part of a broader,
federally mandated Single Audit designed to meet the needs of federal and state grantor
agencies. The standards governing Single Audits require the independent auditor to report
not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, includingthose
involvingthe administration of grant awards.

Profileof the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission

The Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, established in2009, was preceded by the
Coosa Valley RegionalDevelopment Center and the North Georgia Regional Development
Center. The two RegionalDevelopment Center's were merged in2009 as required by House
Bill 1216,which reorganized Georgia's system of regionalplanning service delivery
organizations. The Northwest GeorgiaRegional Commission currently serves the member
counties of Bartow, Catoosa, Chattooga, Dade,Fannin,Floyd, Gordon, Gilmer, Haralson,
Murray, Paulding, Pickens, Polk, Walker and Whitfield and the forty-nine municipalities
within these counties.

The Commission's Boardhas fifty members that represent local governments, the private
sector, the Governor, the Lieutenant Governor, and the Speaker of the House from within a
fifteen county area innorthwest Georgia. The Commission is one of twelve regional
Commissions inthe State of Georgia established by HouseBill 1216.

The Commission's federal and state assisted planningresponsibilities include transportation,
water, and comprehensive community planning. The Commission's Area Agency on Aging
has the responsibility for providing nutrition, social services, and employment programs for
the elderly ina fifteen county area. The Commission is an Appalachian Regional
CommissionLocalDevelopment District. The Commission is an Economic Development
District, as designated by the U. S. Department of Commerce, Economic Development
Administration. It serves as the grant recipient and administrative/fiscal agent for the
Northwest Georgia Workforce Investment Board (WIB). The WIB and Commission also
provide a wide array of services to expandjob skills andjob seeking skills of clients ina 15
county area.
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The annual budget serves as the foundation of the Commission's financial planning and
control. It is approved each year by the Commission's BoardofDirectors.

Factors Affecting FinancialCondition

The information presented inthe financial statements is best understoodwhen considered in
the broader perspective of the general environment inwhich the Commission operates. The
local area served by the Commission comprises fifteen member counties, forty-nine member
municipalities, and over 800,000 estimated population. The condition of the regional, state,
and national economies affect the Commission directly and indirectly through the condition
of our member governments as well as budget reductions or increases from state and federal
grants. The diverse programs of the Commission tend to reduce the overall financial risk of
the organization. Some programs may actually be eligible for additional funding inthe
presence of a poor or declining economy.

The Commissionmaintains insurance policies for all materialknownand identified risks.

The Commissionmaintains'ÿ defined benefits retirement plan for employees hiredprior to
July 1,2010, and a matching deferred compensation program for employees hired on or after
July 1,2010. Eachyear an independent actuary is engaged by the Georgia Municipal
Employees Benefit System (GMEBS) to determine the annual contribution amount from the
Commission that is needed to meet the obligations to employees. The Commission also
makes available to employees a 40IKretirement planwhich is funded solely by employee
contributions.

Acknowledgments

The preparation of this report was a cooperative effort of the Commission's fiscal staff.
They were assisted by other programstaff as needed, and by the auditors, RLJennings &
Associates, PC, whose knowledge andjudgement were very valuable in the successful
completion of this task.

Respectfully submitted,

LloydFrasier
Executive Director
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Chairman and Board ofDirectors
Northwest Georgia Regional Commission

Rome, Georgia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Northwest Georgia
Regional Commission, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Commission's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. <

Management's Responsibility for the FinancialStatements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materialmisstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from materialmisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accountingpolicies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentationof the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, as of June 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and the respective budgetary comparisons
for the General Fund, Aging Fund, Workforce Fund, and Neighborhood Stabilization Fund for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerica.

Other Matters

RequiredSupplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 10-15 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted inthe United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limitedprocedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nomnajor fund financial statements, schedule of nonpublic funds, and schedule of state contractual assistance are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures
of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, andNon-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, schedule ofnonpublic funds, schedule of state contractual
assistance, and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from
and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, such
information is fairly stated in all material respects inrelation to the basic -financial statements as a whole.

Other ReportingRequired by GovernmentAuditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 29, 2014, on our
consideration of Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Northwest Georgia
Regional Commission's internal control over financial reportingand compliance.

Rome, Georgia
December 29, 2014
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Northwest Georgia RegionalCommission
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2014

Our discussion and analysis of the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's financial performance
provides an overview of the Commission's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Please
read it inconjunction with the Commission's accompanying financial statements and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The components of the financial statements include 1) Management's Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A), 2) Basic Financial Statements, and 3) Other Required Supplementary Information (RSI).
Management's Discussion & Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical
overview of the Commission's financial activities. The MD&A for the current year ending June 30, 2014
provides comparisons with the previous year in compliance with the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board(GASB) Statement No. 34.

FINANCIALHIGHLIGHTS

The assets of the Commission exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $3,713,146. Of
this amount, $2,162,245 inunrestrictednet assets maybe used to meet the Commission's ongoing obligations to
the member local governments and other creditors. As indicated in the Statement ofActivities, this year's
operations resulted in a net asset increase of $629,182 or a 20.4% increase. Total program expenditures for the
Commission decreased by $2,010,242 (10.8%), and programrevenues decreased by $1,871,450 (9.8%).

Also from the Statement Activities, the General government reported a decrease of $920 in
expenditures for the year. Aging services reported a decrease in revenue of $537,393 and a decrease of
$182,366 in expenditures for the year. Planning services reported a decrease in revenue of $271,601 and a
decrease of $343,619 in expenditures for the year. Workforce services reported a decrease in revenue of
$2,089,818 and a decrease of $2,089,667 in expenditures for the year. Neighborhood stabilization services
reportedan increase inrevenue of $579,630 and an increase of $573,789 inexpenditures for the year.

From the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance, the General Fund
reported an increase in revenue of $184,376, an increase of $18,138 in expenditures for the year, and an
increase in Fund Balance of $447,724 to a current Fund Balance of $2,305,507. The Special Revenue Fund
reported a decrease in revenue of $1,945,554 and a decrease of $1,943,499 in expenditures for the year. The
Special Revenue FundBalance increasedto $2,182.

The General Fund is used primarily to account for local dues revenue and the contribution of those
dues as requiredmatch to grants accounted for inthe Special Revenue Fund. The Special Revenue Fundis used
to account for the many different grants that the Commissionreceives and administers.

Salaries, travel, indirect costs, and fringe benefits make up the majority of the administrative operating
costs of the Commission. The remaining balance of the' Special Revenue Fund monies is spent for service
contracts that provide a wide variety of services to the target groups designated by the grant agencies and/or
grant documents. The Commission's ability to control the amount of these many funding resources is in most
cases very limited. The General Fund local dues revenue is one revenue source that the Commission's Council
directly controls. The Board directly approves the amount of this dues assessment. The Aging services grant
amount is determined by the Department ofHuman Services as part of an annual state-wide allocation of funds
which also contains a number of restrictions and limitations concerning the use of funds. The Commission
maintains approximately twenty separate cost centers to record and track spending for the Aging services. We
are also subject to a number of budgetary line item limitations within those cost centers. The total Aging
services grant amount has been relatively stable.

The Workforce services giants are segregated into three main funding streams: adult, youth, and
dislocated worker. Within those streams, administrative and program costs must be accounted for and are
strictly limited. Most Workforce grants are for a two year period and two grants for each funding stream are
usually awarded each year. Duringthe year, additional funds often become available because of Commission's
requests for additional funds or because of money becoming available at the state level. These new funds are
also subject to strict limitations controlling their use. Grant funds for one grant may not be spent for
expenditures relating to the other grants. Each grant may only pay for those things that result in a direct or
indirect benefit to that grant.

10



Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2014

Planning service giants have recently become more unpredictable. Federal and state grant amounts are
often subject to reductions or delays. When new grants are made available, they are often offered on a limited
time basis and with little advance notice. These conditions do not facilitate good planning for staff composition
or financial budgets. The Commission's assets exceed our liabilities, and net assets for the year increased. The
General Fund's fond balance also exhibited a good increase. Inlight of these favorable indicators, we conclude
that the Commission's financial position improvedduring this fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF THE AUDIT REPORT AND BASIC FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities are basic government-wide statements that provide information about the activities of
the Commission as a whole and present a long-term view of the Commission's finances. Fund Financial
Statements are for separate governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in
the short term as well as what remains for foture spending. Fund financial statements also report the
Commission's operations in more detail than government-wide statements by providing information about all
the Commission's fonds.

REPORTINGTHE COMMISSIONAS A WHOLE

The Statement ofNetAssets andthe Statement ofActivities

For our analysis of the Commission as a whole, one of the most important concerns about the
Commission's finances is whether or not we improved our general financial condition as a result of the year's
activities. Such improvement is one indicator of how successfully we perform our financial duties and
responsibilities to our member governments currently, and how we will be able to perform them in the foture.
The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the Commission as a
whole and about its activities in a way that addresses this government-wide focus. Changes in the
Commission's financial position may be measured over time by increases and decreases inthe Statement ofNet
Assets. The Statement of Activities reflects how the net assets changed during the year.

REPORTING THE COMMISSION'S FUNDS

FundFinancialStatements

For our analysis of the Commission's fonds, the Fund Financial Statements provide more detailed
information about individual funds and individual fonds sources, rather than the Commission as a whole. Some
fonds are required to be established by grant providers, federal and state laws, regulations, or other policies.
Some fonds are established for the Commission's management and control purposes.

Governmental fonds - The Commission's basic services are reported in governmental fonds. These
fonds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures
cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Commission's general government operations and
the basic services it provides. Governmental fond informationhelps determine whether there are more
or fewer financial resources available. The relationship and differences between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental
fonds is reconciled on the following page of the financial statements.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Management's Discussion andAnalysis
June 30, 2014

NOTESTO THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to the full
understanding of the data provided in the government wide and fund financial statements. Refer to Note A of
the financial statements for more detailed informationon the many elements of the financial statements.

CONDENSED FINANCIALINFORMATION

The Commission's combined net assets are composed primarily of equipment, furnishings, and real
property. The Commission's fiscal year is July 1to June 30.

Net assets of the Commission's governmental activities compared to the previous year are as follows:

Change inNet Assets

Governmental Activities

2013-2014 2012-2013

Current and other assets $5,404,391 $ 4,684,753

Capital assets 88,165 110,529

Total Assets $ 5,492,556 $ 4,795,282

Current liabilities $ 3,067,920 $2,871,420

Long-term liabilities 174,226 216,445

Total Liabilities $ 3,242,146 $ 3,087,865

Net assets:

Investedincapital assets $ 88,165 $ 110,529

Unrestricted 2,162,245 1,596,888

Total net assets $ 2,250,410 $ 1,707,417

Net assets increased $629,182 inthe current fiscal year.

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Management's Discussionand Analysis
June 30, 2014

The comparison to the previous year revenues and expenses for governmental activities for the year are:

Programrevenues -
General government

Regional appropriations
Interest income

Miscellaneous income

Gain on sale of capital asset

Transfers

Charges for services

Aging services

Planning & development services

Workforce services

Neighborhoodstabilization

Total Revenues

Change inNet Assets

Governmental Activities

2013-2014

868,076

91

389,623

77,032

99,003

7,950,776

614,750

5,846,455

1,202,912

17,048,718

2012-2013

865,294

869

24,692

2,055

35,801

8,488,169

886,351

7,936,273

623,282

18,862,786

Program expenses -
General government

Aging services

Planning services

Workforce services

Neighborhoodstabilization

Total Expenditures

1,547,824
7,813,927

622,246

5,448,235

1,148,907

1,548,744
7,996,293

965,865

7,537,902

575,118

16,581,139 18,623,922

Change innet assets

Net assets, beginning

467,579

1,782,831

238,864

1,468,553

Net assets, ending $ 2,250,410 $ 1,707,417

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2014

THE COMMISSION'S FUNDS

The Commission uses fund accounting to document financial activities and demonstrate compliance
with finance related regulations and laws. This method of accounting provides the necessary level of detail to
report andmonitor expenditures in a number of individual cost centers. As the Commission completed the year,
its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance increase of $447,724 to $2,305,507. The General
Fund, fund balance increased $447,724 to $2,305,507.

Over the course of the year, the Commission's grant amounts, and therefore its budget, are constantly
changing. The wide range of programs and services, the variety of grant start and end dates, and additional
funds awarded to the Commission during the year dictates continuous attention to the Budget. For example,
worker layoffs in our area can result in receiving substantial additional funds from the Georgia Department of
Economic Development-Workforce Divisionto assist inrefrainingor job finding services.

An important concept to keep in mind for budget analysis and comparisons to expenditures is that
some of the Commission's major activities do not consider the only purpose of the budget to be an instrument to
limit spending. The service programs plan to and actually should spend most of the ftinds available to them
during the year. That provides one indication that they are fully utilizing available resources to provide the
most services possible. Of course, the money is being spent in a responsible manner approved by the proper
oversight Boards and officials. The Aging and Workforce Investment programs include grants and portions of
grants that are examples of this situation.

GENERALFUNDBUDGETARYHIGHLIGHTS

In the General fund, the budgeted amounts changed during the year in several line items. Actual
revenues were higher than the final budget and actual expenditures were less than final budgeted expenditures.
The actual transfers out (local match) were less than the final budgeted amount which, along with the favorable
revenue and expenditure budget variances, allowed for a $447,724 increase inGeneral Fundfund balance.

CAPITALASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

At the end of2014, the Commission had$88,165 incapital assets (net of depreciation).

2013-2014 2012-2013

BeginningBalance, Equipment $110,529 $ 150,283

Increase

Decrease (22,364) (39,754)

EndingBalance, Equipment $ 88,165 $ 110,529

The percentage decrease inthe Equipment Balance is 20%.

Some assets owned by the Commission are purchased with grant money and maintained for the
associated state agencies. For more detail on capital asset and long-term debt activity, please refer to Note E.
Capital Assets andNote I.Long-TermLiabilities for more informationonthe respective classification.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Management's Discussionand Analysis
June 30, 2014

ECONOMICFACTORSAND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

The Commission's Council considered many factors when setting the 2014 -2015 fiscal year budget.
The Commission's staff and total budget has grown inmany areas over the last several years. However, some of
the Commission's grants sources continue to predict significant reductions inaward amounts due to the budget
shortfalls and cuts at federal and state levels, forcing the use of additional local funds if service levels are to be
maintained. Considerable effort has been made to identify additional federal and state funding, but all levels of
government are reducingwhere possible.

Local government contributions to the Commission remain one of the best investments available to
cities and counties. Local dues allow the Commission to matchgrants and have funds for cash flow that enables
the Commission to provide services that many community based service agencies would find to be impossible.
The return on the dues investment made by member governments is very good by any standard. Every $1 of
local dues received allows the Commission to obtain up to $18 of federal and state grant funds for the area.

CONTACTINGTHE COMMISSION'S FINANCIALMANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Commission's finances and to
show the Commission's accountability for the money it receives. Ifyou have questions about this report or
need additional information, contact us at the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, One Jackson Hill
Drive, P.O. Box 1798, Rome, Georgia 30162-1798.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofNetPosition
June 30, 2014_

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

ASSETS
Cash $ 1,609,606 $ 630,770 $ 2,240,376 $ 114,587
Receivables 3,488,658 509,779 3,998,437 5
Current portion of notes receivable - 68,205 68,205 -
Internalbalances 92,969 (92,969) - -
Due from component unit 162,401 - 162,401 -
Prepaid expenses 50,757 - 50,757 -
Notes receivable (net of allowance of $46,279) - 347,600 347,600 -
Nondepreciable capital assets 23,413 - 23,413 -
Depreciable capital assets, net 64,752 - 64,752 -

TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,492,556 $ 1,463,385 $ 6,955,941 $ 114,592

LIABILITIESAND NETPOSITION
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable $ 1,760,227 $ - $ 1,760,227 $ -
Accrued liabilities 138,521 - 138,521 -
Dueto primary government - - - 162,401
Deferred revenues 1,169,172 - 1,169,172 -
Long-termcompensated absences 174,226 - 174,226 -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,242,146 3,242,146 162,401

NETPOSITION
Investment incapital assets 88,165 - 88,165 -
Restricted 30,631 - 30,631 -
Unrestricted 2,131,614 1,463,385 3,594,999 (47,809)

TOTAL NET POSITION 2,250,410 1,463,385 3,713,795 (47,809)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 5,492,556 $ 1,463,385 $ 6,955,941 $ 114,592

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofActivities
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014_

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues__Changes in Net Position

Charges Operating _Primary Government

Functions/Programs Expenses
for

Services
Grants &

Contributions
Governmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities Total
Component

Unit
Primary Government

Governmental activities:
General government $
Aging services
Planning and development services
Workforce services
Neighborhood stabilization

1,547,824 $
7,813,927

622,246
5,448,235
1,148,907

99,003 $

93,000

1,202,912

*
7,950,776

521,750
5,846,455

5 (1,448,821) 3
136,849

(7,496)
398,220

54,005

i - $ (1,448,821) $
136,849

(7,496)
398,220

54,005

-

Total governmental activities 16,581,139 1,394,915 14,318,981 (867,243) (867,243)

Business-Tvoe Activities
RevolvingLoan
Fiscal Intermediary

18,718
42,604

1,505
215,141

- - (17,213)
172,537

'

(17,213)
172,537

-

Total business-type activities 61,322 216,646 155,324 155,324

Total primary government $ 16,642,461 $ 1,611,561 $ 14,318,981 (867,243) 155,324 (711,919)

Component Unit
NGCDC, Inc. $ 43,948 $ 38,775 $ (5,173)

Total component unit $ 43,948 $ 38,775 $
>

- (5,173)

General revenues:
Regional appropriations 868,076 - 868,076 -
Interest revenue 91 24,530 24,621 86
Miscellaneous income 389,623 - 389,623 52

Transfers 77,032 (18,251) 58,781 (20,992)
Total general revenues and transfers 1,334,822 6,279 1,341,101 (20,854)

Change innetposition 467,579 161,603 629,182 (26,027)
Net position- beginning ofyear, as restated 1,782,831 1,301,782 3,084,613 (21.782)
Netposition- end ofyear S 2,250,410 $ 1,463,385 $ 3,713,795 $ (47,809)

Tie accompanying notes arean integralpartof this statement
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Northwest Georgia RegionalCommission
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014 __

__
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from, other funds
Due from component unit
Due from other government

Prepaidexpenses

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

General
Fund

137,176
64,618

2,621,429
162,401

50,424

$ 3,036,048 $

65,205
127,844
507,867
29,625

730,541

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

50,424

2,255,083
2,305,507

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUNDBALANCES $ 3,036,048

The accompanying notes are an integralpart of this statement

Neighborhood Other Total
Aging Workforce Stabilization Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

5,396 $ 31,304 $ 1,432,823 $

1,737,847
303,217

70,269 1,079,653 131,746
333

2,116,729 $ 1,110,957 $ 1,564,902 S_379,045 $ 8,207,681

2,907 $ 1,609,606
316,003 2,118,468

60,135 2,984,781
162,401

1,281,668
50,757

867,333 $ 713,748 $ 104,235 $ 9,706 $ 1,760,227
10,677 - - 138,521

1,190,714 355,695 645,856 103,158 2,803,290
58,682

__
814,811

__
266,054

__
1,169,172

2.116,729 1.080.120 1.564.902 378.918 5.871.210

333 - 50,757
30,837 (333) 127 30,631_ÿ _- _- 2,255,083
30,837 . 127 2,336,471

1,110,957 S 1,564,902 $ 379,045 $ 8,207,681
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Reconciliationof the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Statement ofNet Position

For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014_

Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 2,336,471

Amounts reportedfor governmental activities in the Statement ofNetPosition

are different because:

Capital assets used ingovernmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported inthe governmental fund statements.

Capital assets $ 1,758,540
Accumulated depreciation _1,670,375 88,165

Long-term liabilities consisting of compensated absences are not

due andpayable inthe current period and, therefore, are not

reported inthe governmental fond statements. _(174,226)

Netposition of governmental activities $_2,250,410

The accompanying notes are an integral partof this statement.

19



Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes inFundBalances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014_

REVENUES
Regional appropriations
Fromgrantor agencies
Charges for services
Interest revenue
Other revenue

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government
Aging
Planning/economic development
Workforce
Neighborhoodstabilization

Capital outlay

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE INFUNDBALANCES

FUNDBALANCES,beginningof year, as restated

FUNDBALANCES,endofyear

General
Fund

868,076 $

99,003
91

967,170

1,499,961

1,499,961

(532,791)

1,417,002
(436,487)

3,515

447,724

1,857,783

2,305,507 $

The accompanyingnotes are an integralpartof this statement

Aging
Fund

Neighborhood Other Total
Workforce Stabilization Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

- S - S
7,950,776 5,846,455

359,913 1,202,912

521,750
93,000

868,076
14,318,981

192,003
91

1,562,825

8,310,689 5,846,455 1,202,912 614,750 16,941,976

7,816,606

16,896

7,833,502

477,187

114,610
(591,797)

(477,187)

5,448,811
1,137,191

3,145

648,674

1,499,961
7,816,606

648,674
5,448,811
1,137,191

20,041

5,448,811 1,140.336 648,674 16,571,284

397,644 62,576 (33,924) 370,692

3,411
(401,055) (62,576)

318,466
(284,542)

1,853,489
(1.776,457)

(397,644) (62,576) 33,924 77,032

- - - 447,724

30,837
_

127 1,888,747

i 30,837 $ - $ 127 $ 2,336,471
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Reconciliationof the Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes
inFundBalance of Governmental Funds to the Statement ofActivities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014_

Net change infund balances - total governmental funds $ 447,724

Amounts reportedfor governmentalactivities in the Statement ofActivities

are different because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures ingovernmental funds.

However, inthe statement of activities, the cost of capital assets

is allocated over their estimateduseful lives as depreciation
expense. Inthe current period, these amounts are:

Capital outlay $ 8,825

Depreciation expense _(31,189) (22,364)

Some expenses reported inthe statement of activities do not require
the use ofcurrent financial resources and, therefore, are not

reported as expenditures ingovernmental funds. These activities
consist of:

Compensated absences
Liability, 06/30/14 (174,226)

Liability,06/30/13 216,445 _42,219

Change innetpositionof governmental activities $_467,579

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes inFundBalance - Budget andActual
General Fund
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amount Variance with
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) Final Budget

REVENUES
Localdues $
Charges for services
Interest revenue
Indirect cost recoveries

863,217 $

5,000
1,591,725

863,217 $

5,000
1,477,100

868,076 $
99,003

91
1,543,972

4,859
99,003
(4,909)
66,872

TOTAL REVENUES 2,459,942 2,345,317 2,511,142 165,825

EXPENDITURES
Current

Personnel services
Supplies
Contractual
Other
Indirect costs

Capital outlay

1,228,425
67,700

162,600
225,800

14,700

1,170,100
48,250

163,800
251,200

13,500

1,175,296
39,647

163,993
121,025
126,970

(5,196)
8,603
(193)

130,175
(113,470)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,699,225 1,646,850 1,626,931 19,919

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 760,717 698,467 884,211 185,744

OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES
AND (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out) (400,000) (450,000) (436,487) 13,513

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES
AND OTHER (USES) (400,000) (450,000) (436,487) 13,513

NET CHANGE INFUNDBALANCE 360,717 248,467 447,724 199,257

FUND BALANCE - beginningofyear,
as restated 1,857,783 1,857,783 1,857,783

FUND BALANCE - end ofyear $ 2,218,500 $ 2,106,250 $ 2,305,507 $ 199,257

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes inFundBalance - Budget and Actual
Aging Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014__

__
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amount Variance with

Original Final (Budgetary Basis) FinalBudget
REVENUES

Fromgrantor agencies $
Subgrantee match

In-kind
Interest revenue
Other income

8,685,171 $ 8,599,729 $

300

7,950,776 $

359,913

(648,953)

(300)
359,913

TOTAL REVENUES 8,685,171 8,600,029 8,310,689 (289,340)

EXPENDITURES
Current

Personnel services
Supplies
Contractual
Other
Indirect costs

Capital outlay

1,068,403
32,929

6,758,705
111,794
798,340

1,068,950
36,427

6,785,090
185,352
622,110

17,100

1,063,463
93,777

6,462,129
197,237
591,797

16,896

5,487
(57,350)
322,961
(11,885)
30,313

204

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 8,770,171 8,715,029 8,425,299 289,730

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (85,000) (115,000) (114,610) 390

OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES
AND (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

85,000 115,000 114,610 (390)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES
AND OTHER (USES) 85,000 115,000 114,610 (390)

NET CHANGE INFUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE- beginningofyear _•_ _
FUNDBALANCE- end ofyear $_- $_- $_- $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes inFundBalance - Budget and Actual
Workforce Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014_

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amount Variance with
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) FinalBudget

REVENUES
Fromgrantor agencies $
Other income
Subgrantee match

9,824,702 $ 6,000,000 Ii 5,846,455 $ (153,545)

TOTAL REVENUES 9,824,702 6,000,000 5,846,455 (153,545)

EXPENDITURES
Current

Personnel services
Supplies
Contractual
Other
Indirect costs

Capital outlay

679,034
29,100

8,454,912
137,254
524,402

700,000
12,750

4,795,850
66,400

425,000

694,954
16,227

4,675,093
62,537

401,055

5,046
(3,477)

120,757
3,863

23,945

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,824,702 6,000,000 5,849,866 150,134

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (3,411) (3,411)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
AND (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

- - 3,411 3,411

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES
AND OTHER (USES) 3,411 3,411

NET CHANGE INFUND BALANCE - - - -

FUND BALANCE- beginning of year,
as restated 30,837

FUNDBALANCE-end of year $ - $ - 5! 30,837 $
_

The accompanying notes are an integralpartof this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes inFundBalance - Budget andActual
Neighborhood Stabilization Fund
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014___

Budgeted Amounts Actual Amount Variance with
Original Final (Budgetary Basis) FinalBudget

REVENUES
Fromgrantor agencies $ - $ <5 - $ -
Charges for services - - - -
Other income 1,500,000 1,200,000 1,202,912 2,912

TOTAL REVENUES 1,500,000 1,200,000 1,202,912 2,912

EXPENDITURES
Current

Personnel services 159,505 110,000 106,648 3,352
Supplies 400 200 - 200
Grant services 1,203,391 1,012,650 993,655 18,995
Other 25,050 12,150 36,888 (24,738)
Indirect costs 111,654 65,000 62,576 2,424

Capital outlay - - 3,145 (3,145)

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,500,000 1,200,000 1,202,912 (2,912)

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCINGSOURCES
AND (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES
AND OTHER (USES) _ÿ ÿ

NET CHANGEINFUNDBALANCE

FUND BALANCE-beginning ofyear _ _L__L_

FUND BALANCE - end ofyear $_- $_ÿ ÿ S

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofNetPosition
Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2014_ÿ

_Enterprise Funds_
RevolvingLoan Fiscal Intermediary Total Proprietary
_Fund_ Fund (nonmajor) _Funds_

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash $ 630,770 $ - $ 630,770

Current portion of notes receivable 68,205 - 68,205

Total current assets 698,975 . 698,975

Noncurrent Assets

Notes receivable, net of allowance
Due from other funds

347,600 72,874
436,905

420,474

436,905

Totalnoncurrent assets 347,600 509,779 857,379

TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,046,575 $ 509,779 $ 1,556,354

LIABILITIESAND NET POSITION

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
Due to other funds $_92,969 $ - $ 92,969

Total current liabilities 92,969 92,969

TOTAL LIABILITIES 92,969 92,969

NET POSITION

Unrestricted 953,606 509,779 1,463,385

TOTAL NETPOSITION 953,606 509,779 1,463,385

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND
NET POSITION $ 1,046,575 $_509,779 $_1,556,354

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement ofRevenues, Expenses and Changes inFundNet Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014_

Enterprise Funds

Revolving Loan

Fund

Fiscal Intermediary

Fund (nonmajor)

Total Proprietary
Funds

Revenues:

Interest revenue from operations
Commission revenue

Baddebt recoveries

$ 24,530 $

1,505

- $

215,141

! 24,530
215,141

1,505

Total operating revenues 26,035 215,141 241,176

Operating expenses:
Personnel services

Salaries and wages

Fringe benefits

18,629
58

13,154 31,783
58

Totalpersonnel services
Operating expenses

18,687
31

13,154
29,450

31,841
29,481

Total operating expenses 18,718 42,604 61,322

Operating income before transfers 7,317 172,537 179,854

Transfers (out) (10,473) (7,778). (18,251)

Increase (decrease) innet position (3,156) 164,759 161,603

Net Position, beginningofyear 956,762 345,020 1,301,782

NetPosition, end ofyear $ 953,606 $ 509,779 $ 1,463,385

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014

EnterpriseFunds
RevolvingLoan Fiscal Intermediary

Fund Fund(nonmajor)

Total Proprietary
Funds

Cashflowsfrom operating activities
Cash received from customers

Interest received from bank
Loans to customers

Cash payments for personnel services
Cash payments for goods and services

$ 40,317 $

(18,687)
(31)

215,141 $

(13,154)
(29,450)

255,458

(31,841)
(29,481)

Net cash provided(used) by operating activities 21,599 172,537 194,136

Cashflowsfrom noncapitalfinancing activities

Interfund loans received (payments made) 18,687 (172,537) (140,696)

Net cashprovided(used) by noncapital
financing activities 18,687 (172,537) (153,850)

Net increase (decrease) in cash 40,286 - 40,286

Cash, beginning ofyear 590,484 _ 590,484

Cash, end ofyear $ 630,770 $ - $ 630,770

Reconciliationofnet income to net cashprovided(used) by operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net

cash providedby operating activities:
Bad debt recoveries
(Increase) decrease innotes receivable

$ 7,317 $

(1,505)
15,787

172,537 $ 179,854

(1,505)
15,787

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 21,599 $ 172,537 $ 194,136

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia RegionalCommission
Statement ofFiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2014_

ASSETS
Cash
Investments held for pension benefits

Mutual funds
Annuities

Receivables
Due from others
Due from other funds
Due from other government

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Due to others
Due to other funds
Unearnedrevenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NETPOSITION
Assets held intrust for pension benefits

TOTAL NET POSITION

Pension
Trust Fund Agency Funds

$ - $ 234,234

616,681

579,753

107,848
__ _155,162

$_616,681 $_1,076,997

$ - $ 109,349

633,277
_ _334,371

_- $ _1,076,997

_616,681

$_616,681

The accompanying notes are an integral partof this statement.
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Northwest Georgia RegionalCommission
Statement of Changes inFiduciaryNet Position
Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014_

Pension
Trust Fund

ADDITIONS
Contributions

Employer $ 9,169
Investment income

Interest, dividends, and other 11,677
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of assets _184,065

TOTAL ADDITIONS 204,911

DEDUCTIONS _-

Change inNet Assets HeldInTrust For Employee PensionBenefits 204,911

NET POSITION- beginningofyear 411,770

NET POSITION- end of year $_616,681

The accompanying notes arc an integralpart of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE1. SUMMARYOFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

The Northwest Georgia Regional Commission (the "Commission") succeeded the former Coosa Valley
Regional Development Center and the North Georgia Regional Development Center (the "Centers) effective
July 1, 2009. Bothof the Centers elected to ratify Georgia HouseBill 1216, which required the combination of
the Regional Development Centers. The responsibilities and authority of the regional commissions are
contained in Sections 50-8-30 through 50-8-46 of OCGA. County members of the Commission are: Bartow,
Catoosa, Chattooga, Dade, Fannin, Floyd, Gilmer, Gordon, Haralson, Murray, Paulding, Pickens, Polk,
Whitfield and Walker counties of Georgia. Municipalities which are members are: Adairsville, Aragon, Blue
Ridge, Braswell, Bremen, Buchanan, Calhoun, Cartersville, Cave Spring, Cedartown, Chatsworth,
Chickamauga, Cohutta, Dallas, Dalton, East Ellijay, Ellijay, Emerson, Euharlee, Fairmount, Fort Oglethorpe,
Hiram, Jasper, Kingston, Lafayette, Lookout Mountain, Lyerly, McCaysville, Menlo, Morganton, Nelson,
Plainville, Ranger, Resaca, Ringgold, Rockmart, Rome, Rossville, Summerville, Talking Rock, Tallapoosa,
Taylorsville, Trenton, Trion, Tunnel Hill,Varnell, Waco, and White.

The Commission administers the spending of various federal and state grants in the fifteen county region
comprising its membership. Workforce Investment Act grants represent 37% and Agency on Aging grants
represent 50% of the Commission's total combined revenue. The Commission administers the Workforce
Investment Act funds by authorization of the local Workforce InvestmentBoard.-

A. ReportingEntity

The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) requires the financial reporting entity consist of (a) the
primary government, (b) organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and (c)
other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusionwould cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

In evaluating the Commission's reporting entity in accordance with GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial
Reporting Entity, management has included all organizations that make up the Commission's legal entity and
all component units. Consistent with applicable guidance, the criteria used by the Commission to include
component units within its reporting entity are financial accountability and the nature and significance of the
relationship. The Commission includes organizations as component units under the following financial
accountability criteria:

• Organizations for which the Commission appoints a voting majority of the Organizations' governing
body and for which (a) the Commission is able to impose its will on the organization or (b) there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on the Commission.

• Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the Commission. Fiscal dependency is established if the
organization is unable to adopt its budget, set rates or charges, or enter into debt without approval by
the Commission.

As a result of applying the criteria of GASB Statement 14, certain organizations have been included in the
Commission's financial statements:

DiscretelyPresentedComponent Unit— NGCDC, Inc.

The NGCDC, Inc. assists local enterprises within the State (not exclusively in the Commission's
region) in servicing financing through the U.S. Small Business Administration's 504 and 7A Loan
Program. The administration ofNGCDC, Inc. is providedby the Commission.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE1. SUMMARY OFSIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(CONTINUED)

Financial information pertaining to the above component unit may be obtained from the Northwest
Georgia Regional Commission upon request. NGCDC, Inc. has the same fiscal year end as the
Commission.

The Commission includes the general operations authorized by statute, programs and projects in which goals
and objectives as well as funding is specified in grant contracts, and such proprietary type activities which have
been established by the Board of Directors.

B. Government-wide andFundFinancialStatements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement ofNet Position and the Statement of Activities)
report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. The effect of inter-fund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,which are normally supported by
regional appropriations, intergovernmental revenues and grants are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and information sales.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Prog-am revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirement of a particular function or segment.
Regional appropriations and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds are reported as separate columns inthe fund financial statements.

The Commissionreports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Commission's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for inanother fund.

The Aging Fund is used to account for the grant activity from the Department ofHuman Resources for
the Area Agency on Aging which provides programs for older citizens.

The Workforce Fund is used to account for the grant activity from the Department of Labor for the
purpose of a job training program designed to increase employment, job retention, earnings, and
occupational skills improvement by participants.

The Neighborhood Stabilization Fund is used to account for the purchase and redevelopment of
foreclosed and abandoned homes and residential properties inorder to stabilize communities that have
suffered from foreclosures and abandonment.

The Commissionreports the following major proprietary fund:

The Revolving Loan Fund is used to account for funds granted to the Commission and then loaned to
entities that meet federal requirements.
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Additionally, the Commission reports the following fund types:

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes.

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net assets. The Commission's fiduciary funds are agency funds
and a pension trust fund. The agency funds are custodial innature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurements of results of operations. Agency funds are used to account for the collection
and disbursement of monies by the Commission on behalf of other entities. The pension trust fund
accounts for activities related to the public employees retirement system.

C. Measurement Focus,Basis ofAccounting, andFinancialStatement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurementfocus and
the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and the fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the related cash flows. Regional appropriations are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied.

Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider havebeenmet.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the currentfinancial resources measurementfocus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Commission considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However,
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is
due.

Revenues of the governmental funds susceptible to accrual are dues from member counties and municipal
governments, earned portion of grant contracts and interest on invested funds. Recognized costs of grant
contracts are used as the basis of recorded revenues from the grantor. Accounts receivable will reflect amounts
earned which are undrawn, and deferred revenues will show balances of advance contract and interest on
invested funds.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenue of the enterprise fund is
the loans fees for services provided. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund includes the cost of services
and administrative expenses. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues. The proprietary fund type statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when they have been earned and are measurable; expenses are recognized when they
are incurred, ifmeasurable.

Agency funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting for purposes of recognizing assets and liabilities,
such as receivables and payables. However, agency funds do not have or report operations, and accordingly are
saidnot to have a measurement focus. •
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D. DeferredOutflows/Inflows ofResources

In preparing the accompanying financial statements, the County has implemented GASB Statement No. 63,
Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and
No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. These standards establish accounting and financial
reporting for deferred outflows / inflows of resources and the concept of net position as the residual of all other
elements presented ina statement of financial position.

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The County only has one item that qualifies for reporting in this
category. It is the deferred charge on refunding reported in the government-wide Statement of Net Position. A
deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its
reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or
refundingdebt.

Inaddition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. Tliis separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition ofnet position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The County only has one type of item, which arises only under modified accrual
accounting that qualifies for reporting inthis category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported
only in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from two
sources: property taxes and ambulance billings. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources inthe period that the amounts become available.

E. Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, in which purchase orders, contract and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve that portionof the applicable appropriation, is not utilizedby the Commission.

F. Cash

The Commission's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

G. PrepaidHems

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit subsequent periods are recorded as prepaid items.

H CapitalAssets

Capital assets, which include equipment, are reported in the govemment-wide financial statements. Capital
assets are defined by the Commission as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $1,000 and an
estimated useful life inexcess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost and depreciated using the
straight-line method of depreciation over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Equipment useful lives range
from 5 to 7 years. Donated property is valued at the estimated fair market value on the date each asset was
acquired.

Capital assets purchased with resources provided by the Georgia Department of Human Resources have not
beenrecorded inthese financial statements.
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ICompensatedAbsences andEmployeeBenefits

The Commissionprovides the following compensated absences and employee benefits:

Vacation Leave: Regular employees are awarded 10 to 24 days per year of vacation leave and may accumulate
up to 30 days. Upon termination of employment, employees are allowed to be reimbursed for accumulated
vacation leave up to a maximum of 30 days. Accumulated leave for which employees could be reimbursed
based on salary rates at June 30, 2014 amounted to $174,226. Amounts vested or accumulated vacation leave
that is not expected to be liquidatedwith current financial resources are reported inthe Long-term Debt Section
of the financial statements for bothgovernmental andproprietary fund types.

Sick Leave: Employees are awarded 12 days per year of sick leave and may accumulate up to 90 days. The
cost of sick leave is recognized as the employee takes it. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 43 Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for
nonvested accumulating rights to sick pay benefits.

Holidays: Employees are awarded 12 days per year as holidays. The cost of holiday leave is recorded when it
is taken by the employee.

Insurance: The Commission maintains a contributory group health plan as well as workers compensation
coverage for all employees.

Payroll Taxes: The Commission, acting as a local government entity, is a participant in the State of Georgia
Employees' Retirement System, which administers FICA and Medicare taxes for local governments of Georgia.
However,payroll tax payments are madeto the InternalRevenue Service inaccordance with IRS regulations.

Retirement Benefits: The Commission contributes to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System, a
multiple employer public employee retirement system, for covered employees. See Note 10 for a further
description of this plan.

J. Long-Term Obligations

The long-term liabilities for vacation leave have beenrecorded inthe fund inwhich they will be expended.

K. FundEquity

The Commission has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, which establishes criteria for classifying fund balances
ingovernmental fund financial statements. Fund balances are presented based on classifications that comprise a
hierarchy which is based primarily on the extent to which the Commission is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which amounts inthe respective government funds can be spent. The classifications used
inthe governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in
spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The Commission has
classified prepaid items as beingnonspendable as these items are not resources inspendable form.

Restricted: This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes whereby constraints
have been placed on the use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The Commission's special revenue funds are legally restricted
to expenditures for specific purposes.
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Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the Council members. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action (ordinance
or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. Tliis classification also includes
contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources inthe fund have been specifically committed for use
insatisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the Commission's intent to use for a
specific purpose but are neither restrictednor committed. This intent can be expressed by (a) the Council or (b)
the Council delegating this responsibility to the Commission's management through the budgetary process.
This classification also includes all remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds other than the
General Fund.

Unassigned: Tliis classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. It represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned to
specific purposes within the General Fund. The Unassigned classification also includes negative residual fund
balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance
amounts.

The Commission's policy would be to use restricted fund balances first when an expenditure is incurred for
purposes for which both restrictedand unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available.
Otherwise, it is the Commission's policy to reduce committed amounts first, followed by assigned amounts, and
then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those
unrestricted fund balance classification couldbe used.

X. Direct Costs/Indirect Costs

Costs that can be identified specifically with a particular cost objective are considered direct costs and are
charged directly to the applicable grant or contract. Costs that are incurred for a common or joint purpose
benefiting more than one cost objective or are not really assignable to the cost objectives specifically benefited,
without effort disproportionate to the results achieved, are considered indirect costs. Indirect costs include
fringe benefit allocation. These indirect costs are recorded inthe general fund by the Commission's accounting
system and allocated to elements of the special revenue funds and general fund based uponvarious factors. The
Commission's indirect cost allocations are based upon prior cost experience, documented by a cost allocation
plan, and is prepared annually in accordance with the provisions of the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-87.

At the end of eachmonthduring the year, actual indirect cost and the fringe benefit rate is determined.

Indirect costs recovered as reimbursable costs in accordance with OMB Circular A-87 are transferred to the
general fund and recognized as an "other financing source."

M. Use ofEstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the reported period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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N. OperatingRevenues andExpenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
funds. For the Organization, these revenues are charges for administrative services. Operating expenses are
necessary costs incurredto provide the good or service that are the primary activity of eachprogram.

NOTE2. LEGAL COMPLIANCE-BUDGETS

OCGA Section 50-8-34 paragraph (g) provides for the Council Board of Directors to adopt an annual budget
and work program for the Commission. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund and all
special revenue fund types. These budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
governmental accounting principles. The "legal level of control" (the level at which expenditures may not

legally exceed appropriations) is at the department level. There were no material supplementary appropriations
made during the year. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end.

For the year ended June 30, 2014, expenditures exceed appropriations at the department level (the legal level of
control) as follows:

Neighborhood StabilizationFund $ 2,912

The overages in expenditures resulted from unanticipated costs and improper budgeting, and were funded by
available revenues that exceededprojectedamounts.

NOTE3. CASHANDINVESTMENTS

At June 30, 2014, the carrying amount of the Commission's deposits was $ 2,467,287 and the bank balance was
$2,660,006. At June 30, 2014, all financial institution deposits were fully insuredor collateralized.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Commission's deposits may not be
returned to it. The Commission does not have a deposit policy for custodial risk. The Commission has not
adopted a fonnal investment policy. Currently, the Commission does not hold any investments, and therefore,
is not exposed to any credit risk related to investments.

NOTE4. RECEIVABLES

Amounts due from localgovernments include localparticipation amounts assessed and unpaidby member cities
and counties.

Federalgrants receivable includes amounts earned on approved federal grant contracts, including federal grants
which may bepassedthrough state agencies.

State grants receivable include amounts earned on grant contracts which do not contain federal fund
participation.

Other receivables include any other amounts due from debtors.

37



Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

NOTE5. CONTINGENTLIABILITIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute
a liability of the applicable tunds. The amounts received, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by
the grantor cannot be determined at this time although the Commission's management expects such amounts, if
any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 6. CAPITALASSETS

The following is a summaiy of changes incapital assets for the year ended June 30, 2014:

Governmental Activities:
Beginning
Balance Additions Disposals

Reclassi¬
fication

Ending
Balance

Capital assets not depreciated:
Land $ 23,413 S - % $ $ 23,413

Total capital assets

not depreciated 23,413 23,413

Capital assets depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery andequipment
Vehicles

472,893
1,212,677

40,732
8,825

- 472,893
1,221,502

40,732

Total capital assets

depreciated 1,726,302 8,825 1,735,127

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

463,450
1,135,004

40,732

11,646
19,543 -

475,096
1,154,547

40,732

Total accumulated
depreciation 1,639,186 31,189 1,670,375

Total capital assets

depreciated, net 87,116 (22,364) 64,752

Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 110,529 $ (22,364) $ $ $ 88,165

Depreciationexpense was charged to fimctions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General government
Planning services
Workforce services

Total depreciation expense
Government activities

$ 15,526
1,966

13,697

$ 31,189
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Interfimd balances at June 30, 2014 consisted of the following amounts and represent charges for services or
reimbursable expenses. These remaining balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1)
interfundgoods or services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting period, and (3) payments between funds are made. The Organization expects to repay all interfund
balances within one year.

Payable to:

Payable from:

General Fund

AgingFund

WIAFund
Neigh Stab Fund
RevolvingLoanFund
Nonmajor Fundand
FiduciaryFunds

General Fund

1,190,714

355,695

645,856
92,969

336,195

Aging Fund WIAFund

250,054 S

53,163

Neighborhood
Stabilization RevolvingLoan

Fund Fund

Nonmajor
Funds and
Fiduciary

Funds

257,813 $

215,348

Total

507,867

1,190,714
355,695

645,856

92,969

604,706

Total 2,621,429 $ 303,217 S 473,161 S 3,397,807

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) provide unrestricted revenues collected inthe general fund to
finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, and (3)
record indirect costs that are expended in the General Fund but recovered by the General Fund from various
programs, with budgetary authorization as indirect cost expenditures of the program.

All interfund transfers occur on a regular basis or are consistent with the purpose of the fund making the
transfer.

Transfers from:

Transfers to: General Fund Aging Fund

General Fund

AgingFund

WIAFund
Nonmajor Fund

114,610
3,411

318.466

WIAFund

591,798 $ 401,056

Neighborhood
Stabilization

Fund

$ 62,576

Revolving
LoanFund

J 10,474

Nonmajor
Funds and
Fiduciary

Funds
Component

Unit

330,106 $ 20,992

Total

1,417,002
114,610

3,411

318,466

Total S 436,487 S 591,798 $ 401,056 S 62,576 10,474 330,106 20,992 1,853,489
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For the year ended June 30, 2013, the Commission adopted GASB Statement No. 54, whichredefined how fund
balances of the govermnental funds are presented in the financial statements. The detail of fund balances that
are nonspendable, assigned, committed, or restricted included in the accompanying Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet at June 30, 2014, are as follows:

General Fund-This fund has nonspendable fund balance in the amount of $50,424 which consists of prepaid
items not inspendable form.

Neighborhood Stabilization Fund - This fund has nonspendable fund balance in the amount of $333 which
consists of prepaid items not in spendable form.

All other funds reflect have fund balances that are classified as unassigned. Interfund receivables are
considered current enough to provide cash flows inthe near future.

NOTE9. RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS

Because of the unique nature of its administrative duties, the Commission had business relationships and
transactions with companies that could be construed as related parties. The Commission administers the
spending of the Workforce Investment Act (WIA) grant funds by contracting with various educational
institutions as well as private companies in the 15 county region comprising its WIA membership. These
contracts are awarded by the Workforce Investment Board (the "WIB"), and subsequently approved by the
Commission's board of directors. These awards are made generally upon the recommendation of WIA
personnel employed by the Commission. The members of the WIB are appointed by the council of elected
officials, which is comprised of various senior elected local government officials in the 15 county regions. Six
of the 37 WIB members are also owners or employees of subcontractors of the Commission inthe utilization of
WIA funds. Duringthe year ended June 30, 2014, contracts between the Commission and subcontractors whose
owners or employees are on the WIB totaled $1,610,890. The WIB board members abstain from voting on
contracts that may result ina conflict of interest.

The remainder of this page was intentionally left blank
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The Commission contributes to the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System ("GMEBS"), a multi¬
employer public employee retirement system that acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
municipalities in Georgia. The plan is an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The Commission's
payroll for employees covered by GMEBS is as follows:

Covered
Year Ending Payroll

June 30, 2014 $ 2,064,199
June 30, 2013 2,235,717
June 30, 2012 2,491,687

The Commission's total payroll was $2,834,928 for the year ended June 30, 2014. Certain required information
is presented herein. For additional information about GMEBS including separately issued financial statements,
contact GMEBS, 201 Pryor Street, S.W., Atlanta, Georgia 30303.

Plan Membership_
As of January 1,Planmembership consisted of the following:

Retiredparticipants, currently receivingbenefits 33
Vested former participants 26
Active participants 43

Totai 102

The plan was amended to close participation to employees hired or rehired on or after August 19, 2010.
Commission employees who retire at or after age 65 with 5 years of credited service are entitled to an annual
retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount (ranging from $4,944 for employees born in 1903 or
earlier to $7,800 for employees bom in 1941 or later) multiplied by the number of credited service years, plus
one and three fourths percent of the number of credited service years. Final average earnings are defined as the
employee's highest five consecutive earning years prior to retirement date. The GMEBS plan permits early
retirement for employees who have reached the age of fifty-five and have completed ten years of credited
service. The GMEBS plan also provides for disability retirement calculated in the same manner as the normal
retirement, with no actuarial reduction for age imposedand inno event will the disability be less than sixty-five
percent of the retiree's average monthly earnings, when coordinated with workman's compensation and social
security for the twelve calendar monthperiod immediately preceding the disability termination.

The benefit provisions and all other requirements are established pursuant to the authority vested in the
commissionby Georgia Law 1965,pp.421 et. Seq., amended.

The Commission's pension plan with GMEBS is a non-contributory plan. The Commission contributes the
minimum contributory amount each year out of current operations. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the
Commission made contributions inthe amount of $247,005 (11.42% of expected payroll).
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The table below sets forth required supplementary information to be disclosed in the schedule of funding
progress. The itemspresented are based on the 2014, 2013 and2012 actuarial valuations.

Actuarial value of assets
Actuarial accrued liability
Fundedratio
Total unfunded actuarial liability (funding excess)
Annual covered payroll
Ratio of unfunded (excess) to annual covered payroll

2014 2013 2012

6,673,479 $ 6,208,671 $ 5,836,675
7,046,586 6,636,285 6,250,149
94.71% 93.56% 93.38%

373,107 427,614 413,474
2,064,199 2,235,717 2,491,687
18.08% 19.13% 16.59%

The participant data and the added values used in the actuarial valuations were compiled as of January 1, 2014,
January 1,2013 and January 1, 2012, respectively.

The actuarial method used to determine the actuarial value of assets includes rolling forward the prior year's
actuarial value with contributions, disbursements, and expected return on investments, plus 10 % of gains
(losses) during the 10 prior years.

The significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarial accrued liability and the annual
recommended contribution of the planmeet the Actuarial Standard ofPracticeNo.4.,
"Measuring PensionObligations", establishinggenerally accepted actuarialprinciples and practices.

The projectionofbenefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potentialeffects of
legal or contractual funding limitations, ifapplicable.

The significant actuarial assumptions used inthe current valuation are:

interest rate 7.75% per year
annual rates of increase in:

o salaries 3.5% per year
o cost of livingadjustment 0.00%peryear

Actuarial assumptions also include an expected inflationof 3.5 percent.

The effect on the actuarial liability of any current year changes inactuarial assumptions or benefit provisions is:

The plan provisions valued are the same as those used in the preceding valuation. The actuarial
assumptions have been changed since the precedingyear and the effect can be obtained from GMEBS.

Trend Informationfor the GMEBS

_(Based onresults of the January 1,actuarial valuation)_
Annual Percentage of

PensionCost APC Net Pension
Year Ending (APC) Contributed Asset

June 30, 2012 $ 217,877 100 % $
June 30, 2013 189,636 100
June 30, 2014 178,989 100
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The funding policy for the plan is to contribute an amount equal to the recommended contribution ineach year.
The recommended contribution meets the guidelines for calculating an annual required contribution set forth in
Paragraphs 9-10 of Statement No.27 of the Government Accounting Standards Board. These contributions are
determined under the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The period, and relatedmethod, for amortizing
the initial unfundedactuarial accrued liability is the following:

Amortization
Period

Gains and losses 15years
Planprovisions 20 years
Actuarial assumptions 30 years

These amortizationperiods, if applicable, are open for this planyear.

401(k) PensionPlan

The Northwest Georgia Regional Commissionmaintains a 401(k) PensionPlan for the benefit of its employees.
The Plan was established by resolution of the Board of Directors effective November 1, 1984, and the Plan
received a favorable determination from the Internal Revenue Service, establishing it as a plan qualified under
the applicable Internal Revenue Code provisions and regulations. The Plan is sponsored by the Lincoln
Financial Group and is administered by the Cannon Financial Str ategists.

The Plan provides for employer matching funds of 7.5%. All contributions are made by the employee and are
fully vested at the time of contribution. The Plan year is January 1to December 3 1.All regular employees are
eligible to participate in the Plan beginning with their beginning date of employment with no age or service
lengthrequirements. Fiscalyear 2014 employer contributions totaled $22,496.

Non-ContributoryDefined Contribution Pension Trust Plan

The Commission maintains a non-contributory defined contribution single-employer pension plan administered
by a Board of Trustees appointed by the Commission's Board of Directors. Under the plans' provisions, the
Commission's commitment is not to a defined benefit upon retirement but only to provide a regular
contribution. Future benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the planplus investment earnings.

RelatedMethod
Leveldollar amount
Leveldollar amount
Leveldollar amount

Balance- July 1, 2013 $ 411,770
FiscalYear 2014 Contributions 9,169
FiscalYear 2014 Distributions
Investment income (loss) _195,742

Balance - June 30, 2014 $ 616,681

This plan is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code and the Trust created by the Plan is
exempt from tax under Section 503(b) of the InternalRevenue Code.

Total payroll for the year was $119,207.
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Under authority of the Board of Directors, the Commission has established a contribution requirement of 7.5%
of the participant's compensation inkeeping with the minimum requirements of the Internal Revenue Service.
For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014, contributions were as follows:

Amout as a %
of Covered

Amount Payroll

Contributionby employer $ 9,169 7.50%
Contribution by employee $ -

NOTE11. LONG-TERMLIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes inaccrued annual compensated absences:

Balance - July 1,2013 $ 216,445
Additions 198,808
Reductions (241,027)

Balance - June 30, 2014 $ 174,226

Typically, long-term liabilities are paid from the funds under which they are incurred or accrued. Ifthe related
fund is unable to liquidate the long-term liability, the general fund would liquidate the long-term liability
utilizingunrestricted funds.

NOTE12. RISKMANAGEMENT

The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Commission purchases
commercial insurance to cover property and liability and professional liability claims. There were no
significant reductions of insurance coverage compared to the prior year. Settlement claims have not exceeded
insurance coverage inthe past three years.

RiskPools
The Commission joined the Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency (GIRMA). The Commission's
management, based on anticipated needs, selects insurance coverage and deductible options for property,
casualty and crime under the policy. The Commission is required to pay all premiums, applicable deductibles
and assessments billed by GIRMA, as well as following loss reductions and prevention procedures established
by GIRMA. GIRMA's responsibility includes paying claims, and representing the Commission in defense and
settlement of claims. GIRMA's basis for estimating the liabilities for unpaid claims in "IBNR" is established
by an actuary. The Commission has not completed a record of the claims paid up to the applicable deductible
for the prior year or the current fiscal year. The Commission is unaware of any claims that,the Commission is
liable (up to the applicable deductible) which were outstanding and unpaid at June 30, 2014. No provisions
have been made inthe financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2014 for any estimate ofpotentialunpaid
claims.
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Grant Contingencies
The Commission has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to the disallowance of certain expenditures previously
reimbursed by those agencies. Based uponprior experience, management believes such disallowances, if any,
will not be significant.

Commitments
The Commission routinely enters into agreements and commitments during the year in the ordinary course of
business. Such agreements do not give rise to assets or liabilities considered material.

NOTE14. PRIOR PERIODRESTATEMENT

The Commission has determined a restatement is required to properly reflect accruals of accounts receivable
relating to the prior period(s).

Governmentalfundfinancialstatements:
GeneralFund

FundBalance, June 30,2013, as previously reported
Adjustment to recordproject delivery costs earned

inFY2013 but not accrued
Adjustment to write-off duplicate account

receivable invoice
FundBalance, June 30,2013, as restated

Workforce InvestmentAct Fund
FundBalance, June 30, 2013, as previously reported
Adjustment to record a receivable for expenditures

paidbut not reimbursed
FundBalance, June 30, 2013, as restated

Government-widefinancialstatements:
GovernmentalActivities
NetAssets, June 30, 2013, as previously reported
Adjustment to recordproject delivery costs earned

inFY2013 but not accrued
Adjustment to write-off duplicate account

receivable invoice
Adjustment to record a receivable for expenditures

paidbut not reimbursed /.u.iul

Net Assets, June 30, 2013, as restated $1.782.831

$1,811,151

120,000

173.368)
$1.857.783

$ 2,055

28.782
$ 30.837

$1,707,417

120,000

(73,368)
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
CombiningBalance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014_

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESAND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Special Revenue Funds
Economic

Development
Fund

Planning
Fund

Total
Governmental

Funds

; - $
77,019
60,135

2,907
238,984

$ 2,907
316,003

60,135

: 137,154 $ 241,891 $ 379,045

1,963 $

135,191

7,743
103,158
130,863

$ 9,706
103,158
266,054

137,154 241,764 378,918

127 127

127 127

$ 137,154 $ 241,891 $_379,045

The accompanyiag notes arc an integralpart of this statement.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Combining Statement of Revenues,Expenditures and Changes inFund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014_

Special Revenue Funds
Economic Total

Development
Fund

Planning
Fund

Governmental
Funds

REVENUES
Fromgrantor agencies
Charges for services
Other revenue

$ 152,954 $ 368,796 $

93,000
521,750
93,000

TOTAL REVENUES 152,954 461,796 614,750

EXPENDITURES
Current

General government

Aging
Planning and economic development
Workforce
Neighborhood stabilization

Capital outlay

255,212 393,462 648,674

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 255,212 393,462 648,674

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF

REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES (102,258) 68,334 (33,924)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
AND (USES)

Transfers in
Transfers (out)

214,086
(111,828)

104,380
(172,714)

318,466
(284,542)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES AND (USES) 102,258 (68,334) 33,924

NET CHANGEINFUNDBALANCES - - -

FUNDBALANCES - beginningofyear 127 127

FUND BALANCES - end ofyear $ - $ 127 $ 127

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Northwest GeorgiaRegionalCommission
Combining Statement ofAssets andLiabilities
All Agency Funds
June 30, 2014_

Northwest Georgia
Hwy 27 Water Resource

Association Fund PartnershipFund

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents S 755 $ 132,034 $

Receivables
Due from others
Due from other funds - 85,979
Due from other government _ _"

TOTAL ASSETS $_755 $_218,013 $

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 220 S 3,639 $

Due to others
Due to other funds 535

L

Unearnedrevenues _ _214,374

TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 755 $ 218,013 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement
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Money Follows NSPPaulding NSP Whitfield Total
PersonFund Fund Fund Agency Funds

101,445 $ - $

474,737 70,719

21,869
123,162 32,000

699,344 $ 124,588 $

- $ 234,234
34,297 579,753

107,848
_- _155,162

34,297 $ 1,076,997

96,923 $ 4,591 $ 3,976 $ 109,349

602,421 - 30,321 633,277_- 119,997 _- _334,371

699,344 $ 124,588 $_34,297 $ 1,076,997
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
SCHEDULE OFNONPUBLIC FUNDS

To the Chairman and Board ofDirectors
Northwest Georgia Regional Commission

Rome, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Northwest
Georgia Regional Commission as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 29, 2014. We have also audited the Schedule of Nonpublic Funds ofNorth Georgia CDC, Inc., a component unit
of the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, as required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 50-8-35.
This schedule is the responsibility of management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this schedule based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit of the schedule in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable toÿfinancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the Schedule of Nonpublic Funds is free of materialmisstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall schedule
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The accompanying Schedule of Nonpublic Funds referred to above was prepared to present the beginningbalance, revenues,
expenditures and ending balance of nonpublic funds as required by the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 50-8-35.
The Schedule of Nonpublic Funds is not intended to be a complete presentation of assets, liabilities, revenues, and
expenditures.

In our opinion, the Schedule of Nonpublic Funds referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the beginning
balance, revenues, expenditures and ending balance of nonpublic funds as required by the Official Code of Georgia
Annotated, Section 50-8-35 for the year ended June 30, 2014, inconformity with accountingprinciples generally accepted in
the United States of America.

t-

This report is intended solely for the information of the administrative committee, management, the Georgia Department of
Audits, and the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these~specified parties.

Rome, Georgia
December 29, 2014
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Schedule ofNonpublic Funds
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014_

Nonpublic FundsRetainedEarnings 7/1/13

Revenues - hfonnvblic Funds:

Source

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Wells Fargo

Interest
Accrued Revenue - Wells Fargo - Prior Year
Accrued Revenue - Wells Fargo - Current Year

Prior Year Escrow

TotalRevenues-NonpublicFunds

Place
NWGRC-DaltonOffice
NWGRC-DaltonOffice
NWGRC- Dalton Office

Purpose

NGCDC BoardMeetingPer DiemFee

NGCDC BoardMeetingPer DiemFee

NGCDC BoardMeetingPer DiemFee

Other expenditures paidfrom nonpublic funds
Accrued expenditures - Prior year

Accrued expenditures - Current year

TotalExpenditures ofNonPublicFunds

Excess (Deficit) ofRevenues Over Expenditures -NonPublic Funds

NonpublicFundsRetainedEarnings 6/30/2014

See followingNotes to the Schedule ofNonpublic Funds.

$ (21,782)

Date Amount
7/2/2013 35 1,564
8/2/2013 1,340
9/4/2013 1,340

10/2/2013 1,340
10/21/2013 12,200
11/4/2013 1,523
12/3/2013 1,523

1/6/2014 1,225
2/4/2014 1,225
3/4/2014 1,225

4/17/2014 1,225
4/17/2014 -

5/2/2014 35,592
6/3/2014 1,846

138

63,306

Persons
NGCDC,Inc.BoardMembers
NGCDC,Inc.BoardMembers
NGCDC,Inc.BoardMembers

10/25/2013

12/18/2013
3/24/2014

Amount

120
120

90

89,003

89,333

(26,027)

$ (47,809)
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2014

Note 1- Schedule ofNonpublic Funds

The employees and representatives of NGCDC, Inc. are authorized to expend nonpublic funds for the business
meals and incidental expenses of bona fide industrial prospects and other persons who attend any meeting at
their request to discuss the location or development of new business, industry, or tourism within the region of
the Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, in accordance with the Official Code of Georgia Annotated,
Section 50-8-35. Nonpublic funds are defined by state law as the servicing fees which are received by a
nonprofit corporation for administering federal or state revolving loan programs or loanpackaging programs.

According to the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, Section 50-8-35(f)(2), a schedule is required to be
included within the annual audit of each nonprofit corporation which reports the beginning balance of
unexpended nonpublic funds; the date, amount, and source of all receipts of nonpublic funds; the date, place,
purpose and persons for whom expenditures were made for all such expenditures of nonpublic funds; and the
endingbalance ofunexpendednonpublic funds.

Note2 - Basis ofAccounting

The Schedule of Nonpublic Funds is prepared in accordance with the accrual basis of accounting. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred.

51



Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Schedule of State Contractual Assistance
State of Georgia-Department of HumanResources
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014_;_

Amount Amount

Contract Owedto Due from

Number Revenues Expenditures Grantor Grantor

AREA AGENCY ONAGING

Aging/MuIti-funded 42700-373-0000020966 $ 7,908,988 $ 7,908,988 $_ $ 1,672,530

TOTAL $ 7,908,988 $ 7,908,988 $_- $ 1,672,530

* Revenues and expenditures are net of in-kind
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Schedule ofExpenditures of FederalAwards
Year EndedJune 30, 2014_

Federal Grantor/Programor Cluster Title

Federal Pass-Through
CFDA Grantor's Federal

Number_ _Number_ Expenditures

APPALACHIANREGIONALCOMMISSION
LocalDevelopment District
LocalDevelopment District
Local FoodGuide

23.001
23.001
23.001

GA-0701G-C3
GA-0701G-C4

GA-17090-2011

41,642
51,074
6,598

99,314

HOUSINGAND URBANDEVELOPMENT
NeighborhoodStabilization
Neighborhood Stabilization

14.256
14.256

08-NS-5052
ll-NS-6009

325,396
877,471

U.S DEPARTMENTOF COMMERCE
Economic Development Administration

Planning andAdministrative Grants
Planning andAdministrative Grants

11.302
11.302

04-83-06502
04-83-06896

1,202,867

26,371
27,269

53,640

LTEDRevolvingLoanFund

Total U.S. Department ofCommerce

U.S. DEPARTMENTOFTRANSPORTATION
Georgia Department ofTransportation

Surface Transportation Funds

11.307

20.205 STP-0009-00(326)

1,074,262

1,127,902

134,753

Total U.S. Department ofTransportation 134,753

U.S. ENVIRONMENTALPROTECTIONAGENCY
Georgia EnvironmentalProtectionDivision 66.460 PlanningCouncil 21,810

- Georgia EnvironmentalProtectionDivision 66.460 DykesCreek 13,718
Georgia EnvironmentalProtection Division 66.460 Silver Creek 11,218
Georgia EnvironmentalProtectionDivision 66.460 Watershed Assessment _15,507

Total U.S. EnvironmentalProtectionAgency _62,253

AGING CLUSTER

U.S.DEPARTMENT OFHEALTHAND HUMANSERVICES
Georgia Department ofHealthandHuman Services

Title IIIA
Title IIIC-l
Title 111C-2

Tide MB

TOTALAGING CLUSTER

93.045 42700-373-0000020966 231,439
93.045 42700-373-0000020966 569,258
93.045 42700-373-0000020966 _789,642

1,590,339

93.044 42700-373-0000020966 _466,468

2,056,807

Title IIID 93.043 42700-373-0000020966 43,167
Title HIE 93.052 42700-373-0000020966 220,453
Title VII 93.042 42700-373-0000020966 18,290
Title XIX Community Care 93.778 42700-373-0000020966 1,082,551
Title XX SSBG 93.667 42700-373-0000020966 373,909
Chronic Disease Self-Management 93.734 42700-373-0000020966 13,603
Georgia Cares 93.779 42700-373-0000020966 98,479
Money Followsthe Person 93.791 42700-373-0000020966 155,922
USDANutrition 93.053 42700-373-0000020966 724,760
PowerfulTools for Caregivers 93.048 42700-373-0000025273 16,378

2,747,512
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Schedule ofExpenditures of FederalAwards
Year EndedJune 30, 2014

Federal Grantor/Program or Cluster Title

Federal
CFDA

Number

Total U.S. Department ofHealthand Human Services

WLA CLUSTER

Pass-Through
Grantor's
Number

Federal
Expenditures

4,804,319

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Georgia Department of Labor

Workforce Investment Act
Adult
Adult
Adult
Adult

Youth
Youth

17.258
17.258
17.258
17.258

17.259
17.259

11-12-12-01-001
11-12-13-01-001
11-13-13-01-001
11-13-14-01-001

15-12-11-01-001
15-13-11-01-001

78,599
796,316
55,970

690,890
1,621,775

702,525
1,160,142
1,862,667

Dislocated Worker
DislocatedWorker
DislocatedWorker
DislocatedWorker
RapidResponse
RapidResponse

TOTAL WIA CLUSTER

Georiga Department ofHealthand HumanServices
Title V

17.260
17.260
17.260
17.260
17.260
17.260

31-12-12-01-001
31-12-13-01-001
31-13-13-01-001
31-13-14-01-001
44-13-13-01-001
44-13-14-01-001

17.235 42700-373-0000020966

153,217
1,581,153

169,433
5,198

43,771
846

1,953,618

5,438,060

NEG 17.277 71-11-11-01-001 87,251
NEG 17.277 73-11-11-01-001 146,370
NEG 17.277 73-13-13-01-001 142,082
NEG 17.277 71-11-TS-01-001 36,104

411,807

5,849,867

575,406
575,406

Total U.S.Department ofLabor 6,425,273

Total Expenditures ofFederalAwards $_13,856,681
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INDEPENDENTAUDITOR'S REPORT ONINTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIALREPORTINGAND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERSBASED

ONAN AUDIT OFFINANCIALSTATEMENTS PERFORMED INACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITINGSTANDARDS

To the Chairman andBoardof Directors
Northwest GeorgiaRegional Commission

Rome, Georgia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Northwest Georgia Regional
Commission, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 29, 2014.

InternalControl over FinancialReporting

Inplanning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express
an opinion on the effectiveness ofNorthwest GeorgiaRegional Commission's internal control.

A deficiency in internal controlexists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course ofperforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a materialmisstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limitedpurpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not

designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during
our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certainprovisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit,
and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances ofnoncompliance or other
matters that are requiredto be reportedunder GovernmentAuditing Standards.

Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's Response to Findings

Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's response was not subjected to the
auditingprocedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with GovernmentAuditing Standards inconsidering the entity's internal
control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Rome, Georgia
December 29, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ONCOMPLIANCE FOREACHMAJOR
PROGRAMAND ONINTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Chairman andBoard of Directors
Northwest Georgia Regional Commission

Rome, Georgia

Report on Compliance for EachMajor FederalProgram

We have audited Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Circular A-1S3 Compliance Supplement that could have direct and material effect on each of
Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2014. Northwest Georgia
Regional Commission's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

Management'sResponsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its
federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standards,issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits ofStates, Local Governments, andNon-Profit Organizations. Those standards and
OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Northwest Georgia Regional
Commission's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination ofNorthwest Georgia Regional Commission's compliance.

Opinion on Each ofthe MajorFederalPrograms

In our opinion, Northwest Georgia Regional Commission complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2014.
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Report 011 InternalControl over Compliance

Management of Northwest Georgia Regional Commission, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. Inplanning and performing our audit
of compliance, we considered Northwest Georgia Regional Commission's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal programto determine the auditing procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness ofNorthwest Georgia Regional Commission's internalcontrol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
conect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A materialweakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
will not beprevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness ininternal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attentionby those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to bematerialweaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements ofOMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Rome, Georgia
December 29, 2014
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs
For the Year EndedJune 30,2014

SectionI—Summary of Auditor's Results

FinancialStatements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Materialweakness(es) identified? _ Yes X_ No

Reportable conditions) identifiednot considered to be
material weaknesses? _ Yes X_ No

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? _ Yes _X_ No

FederalAwards

InternalControl over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? _ Yes _X_ No

Reportable conditions) identifiednot considered to be
materialweaknesses? _ Yes X_ No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs:
Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a)?

Identificationofmajor programs:

Yes X No

CFDA Numberfs)_Name ofFederalProgram or Cluster
14.256 Neighborhood Stabilization Program (Recovery Act Fund
17.235 Georgia Department of HumanResources Senior

Community Service Employment Program
17.277 Georgia Department ofLabor Workforce Investment

Act (WIA)National Emergency Grants
93.667 Georgia Department ofHumanResources Social

Services Block Grant
93.778 Georgia Department of HumanResources Medical

Assistance Program
93.791 Georgia Department of HumanResources Money

Follows the PersonRebalancing
Demonstration
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year EndedDecember31, 2014

Dollar threshold usedto distinguish betweenType A and Type B $ 500,000_

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No

Section II—FinancialStatement Findings

None reported.

Section III- FederalAward Findings and Questioned Costs

None reported.
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Northwest Georgia Regional Commission
Summary Schedule ofPrior Audit Findings
For the Year EndedJune 30, 2014

Auditor Reference Number

13-01Reconciliation of Wage Reporting

Corrected.

10-02 Maintenance of General Ledger

Corrected.

10-3 Reconciliation of Grant Submissions to the General Ledger

Corrected.

10-04 Segregation of Duties

Corrected.
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